
The Board of Accountancy schedules all public meetings at barrier free sites.  Persons who need special assistance, such as enlarged type 
materials, please contact the Board's Americans with Disabilities Act contact person: 
Kirsten Donovan, Washington State Board of Accountancy 7-1-1 or 1-800-833-6388 (TTY) - 1-800-833-6385 (Telebraille) 
PO Box 9131, Olympia, WA   98507-9131 (TTY and Telebraille service nationwide by Washington Relay 
Phone:  360-664-9191   Email:  kirstend@cpaboard.wa.gov    www.washingtonrelay.com) 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
 
Date, Time: Friday, April 28, 2017 – 9:00 a.m. 
Location: Central Washington University 
 Barge Hall, Board of Trustees Conference Room 412 
 400 East University Way 
 Ellensburg, WA 98926 
 (509) 963-1111  
  
Notices: None  
  
Chair Introductions 

 
 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
                                                                                                                       
1. Minutes – January 27, 2017, Regular Board Meeting ....................................................................... A 
 
2. Board Policies – Annual Review 

a.  2002-1  Substantially Equivalent Jurisdictions ......................................................................... B 
b.  2002-2  Expert Witness Services .............................................................................................. C 
c.  2002-4  International Reciprocity ............................................................................................. D 
d.  2003-1  Safe Harbor Report Language for Use by Non-CPAs ................................................. E 
e.  2004-1  Sanction and Penalty Guidelines ................................................................................. F 
f.  2004-2  Exam Applicant Disability Documentation and Testing Modification Guidelines ..... G 
g.  2011-1  Principles Underlying Board Rules ............................................................................. H 
h.  2011-2  Interim Policy Guidelines Pending Rule Changes ....................................................... I 
i.  2012-1  Social Media ................................................................................................................ J 
j.  2015-1  Board Member Travel and Attendance at Group Gatherings ...................................... K 

 
3. Rules Review  

a. WAC 4-30-050 and WAC 4-30-051 Board Discusion ............................................................. L 
b. WAC 4-30-140, What are the authority, structure, and processes for investigations 

and sanctions? 
 
4. Legal Counsel’s Report 
  



Washington State Board of Accountancy 
Regular Board Meeting Agenda 
Page 2 

The Board of Accountancy schedules all public meetings at barrier free sites.  Persons who need special assistance, such as enlarged type 
materials, please contact the Board's Americans with Disabilities Act contact person: 
Kirsten Donovan, Washington State Board of Accountancy 7-1-1 or 1-800-833-6388 (TTY) - 1-800-833-6385 (Telebraille) 
PO Box 9131, Olympia, WA   98507-9131 (TTY and Telebraille service nationwide by Washington Relay 
Phone:  360-664-9191   Email:  kirstend@cpaboard.wa.gov    www.washingtonrelay.com) 
 

 
5.   Chair’s Report 
 a.   Status of UAA Recommended Draft Model Rule for Continuining Professional 

Education (CPE) Requirements 
 b. NASBA Ethics Committee Update on Withholding Records Pending Payment   
 c. UAA Committee Update on the Chartered Global Management Accountant 

(CGMA) Designation    
 
6.  Committee/Task Force Reports 

a. Executive – Thomas G. Neill, CPA, Chair - Verbal Report  
b. Compliance Assurance Oversight – Karen R. Saunders, CPA, Chair – Verbal Report ........... M 
c. Legislative Review – Favian Valencia, Chair – No Report 
d. Quality Assurance – Thomas G. Neill, CPA, Chair –Verbal Report ....................................... N  
e. Request Review – Elizabeth D. Masnari, CPA, Chair – Verbal Report ................................... O 
f. State Ethics Compliance – James R. Ladd, Ethics Advisor –  No Report 
g. Qualifications – Emily R. Rollins, CPA, Chair –  Verbal Report    
h. Performance Review and Succession – Emily R. Rollins, CPA, Chair – No Report 
i. Social Media – Favian Valencia, Chair – Verbal Report ......................................................... P 
j. WSCPA Education Fund – Elizabeth D. Masnari, CPA, Chair – No Report 

 
7. Executive Director’s Report 

a. 2017-2019 Proposed Budget Update ........................................................................................ Q 
b. Bills Passed by the Legislature Regarding Small Business 
c. Results Washington – Measure Development Related to Pipeline 
d. Canada Cross-border Initiative 
e. Other Issues 

 
8.   Enforcement Report ........................................................................................................................... R 

 
9. Executive and/or Closed Sessions with Legal Counsel 

 
10. Public Input - To ensure the public has an opportunity to address its concerns and the  

Board has an opportunity to ask questions of the public. Individual speakers will be  
provided 10 minutes each. 



WASHINGTON STATE BOARD OF ACCOUNTANCY 
 

Unapproved Draft - Minutes of a Regular Meeting of the Board – Unapproved Draft 
 

Time and Place of 
Meeting  

9:01 a.m. – 1:48 p.m. Friday, January 27, 2017  
Highline Community College 
Building 2  
2400 S. 240th Street  
Des Moines, WA 98198 
 

Attendance 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Board Members 
Thomas G. Neill, CPA, Chair, Board Member 
Elizabeth D. Masnari, CPA, Vice Chair, Board Member (left at 

12:00 p.m.) 
James R. Ladd, CPA, Secretary, Board Member 
Emily R. Rollins, CPA, Board Member 
Karen R. Saunders, CPA, Board Member  
Favian Valencia, Public Member 
Rajib Doogar, Public Member (left at 12:00 p.m.) 
Mark Hugh, CPA, Board Member 
 
Staff and Advisors 
Charles E. Satterlund, CPA, Executive Director 
Jennifer Sciba, Deputy Director 
Kirsten Donovan, Board Clerk 
 

Call to Order Board Chair, Tom Neill, called the regular meeting of the 
Board to order at 9:01 a.m. 
 
The Board Chair excused the absences of Joel Cambern, 
Public Member, and Bruce Turcott, AAG, Board Advisor. 
  

Minutes – October 
28, 2016 Annual 
Board Meeting 
 

The Board approved the minutes of the October 28, 2016, 
annual Board meeting as presented. 

Washington State 
Office of the 
Attorney General – 
State Action 
Training for Boards 
 

Justin Wade, AAG, presented the PowerPoint, “How Teeth 
Whitening Changed the Landscape of State Action Boards”, 
and followed with a question and answer session. 

Delegations of 
Authority 
 

The Board reviewed and voted to revoke the following 
delegation, as the position of Director of Investigations is 
vacant: 

• Authority to Conduct Investigations 



Minutes, January 27, 2017, Regular Board Meeting 
 
 

 
Page 2 of 8 

  
The Board voted to retain the following delegations revised 
for the current chair’s name, signature, and date: 
 

• Charges, Subpoenas, Negotiate Settlement  
• Administrative Notices of Non-

Compliance/Administrative Sanctions  
• CPE Waiver Extension Requests/Request Review 

Committee 
• Quality Assurance Oversight/Review of Publicly 

Available Professional Work 
 

Rules Review WAC 4-30-051 What are the requirements concerning clients 
records, including response to requests by clients and former 
clients for records? 
 
Tom Neill led the discussion of possible revisions to the rule. 
Mark Hugh will work with Board staff to draft a proposed 
revision to WAC 4-30-051, which will more closely align the 
Board Rule with AICPA Code Section 1.400.200. 
 
WAC 4-30-132 What are the program standards for CPE? 
 
Tom Neill led the discussion of possible revisions to the rule. 
After the comment period for the UAA Recommended Draft 
Model Rule for CPE Requirements, the Qualifications 
Committee will work on a drafting possible revisions to WAC 
4-30-132.  

  
NASBA Update 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ed Jolicoeur, NASBA Pacific Regional Director, reported on 
the following NASBA activities: 
 

• Communication with State Boards 
• Western Regional Meeting on June 7-8 with the new 

Board Member orientation on June 6. He highly 
encouraged the new Board Members to attend if their 
schedules allowed. 

• Board of Directors Annual Meeting, which included the 
topics of unilateral international pathway to CPA and 
the CPE Model Rules exposure draft 

• Training issues on the use of title with the development 
of model language, which is going to committee for 
review 



Minutes, January 27, 2017, Regular Board Meeting 
 
 

 
Page 3 of 8 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

• Evaluation of peer review administration 
• CPE audit tool, which should be available in April 
• Accreditation of educational institutions 
• Data analytics 
• Firm mobility which has been adopted by 16 State 

Boards  
 
Tom Neill reported that at the NASBA Annual Meeting he, 
Board staff, a NASBA official, an AICPA official, Canadian 
officials, and a representative from the Washington Society of 
CPAs (WSCPA) met to discuss cross border mobility. Each 
side will look at their statutes and rules for barriers to mobility 
with possible changes coming in the 2018 legislative session.  

  
Board Member 
Participation 
Summary 
 

Board Members discussed their participation in Board 
outreach activities for 2016. 

Chair’s Report Discussion of WAC 4-30-050 and AICPA Code of 
Professional Conduct 1.400.205 
 
The Board Chair led the discussion on possible revisions to 
the rule. Mark Hugh and Tom Neill will work on drafting a 
proposed revision to WAC 4-30-050, which will more closely 
align the Board Rule with AICPA Code Section 1.400.205. 
 
Board Communications 
 
The Board Chair reminded Board Members that email 
communications regarding Board activities are subject to the 
Public Records Act, RCW 42.56. Board staff is responsible 
for maintaining the email records when a staff member is the 
sender or is included as a recipient. If no staff member is 
included in email communications, the Board Member should 
coordinate with the Deputy Director, so that she is aware of 
the records in case of a public records request. 
 

Executive 
Committee  
 

Tom Neill reported that he had a telephone call with the 
members of the committee. They discussed matters 
regarding possible future rule changes that were covered in 
his meeting with the Executive and Deputy Director earlier in 
January. The topics covered will be addressed in the 
Executive Director’s report later in the meeting. 



Minutes, January 27, 2017, Regular Board Meeting 
 
 

 
Page 4 of 8 

 
Compliance 
Assurance 
Oversight 
Committee 
 

 
Karen Saunders had nothing to report. 
 

Legislative Review 
Committee 
 

Favian Valencia had nothing to report. 

Quality Assurance 
Committee 
 

Tom Neill reported on the peer review process. He noted that 
things seem to be getting more punitive. 

 
Request Review 
Committee 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tom Neill reported on the 4th quarter 2016 approval and 
denials from the committee: 

 
Firm Names:  Approved: 
 
ELIZABETH LOVELAND CPA 
JOSE L SANCHEZ, JD, CPA 
COLUMBIA BASIN CPA, PLLC 
HARTVIGSEN FINANCIAL SERVICES 
DOWELL CONSULTING, PLLC 
THE SHERIFF CPA SERVICES, LLC 
WGN, PS 
FBCPA GROUP PS, INC 
ATS ACCOUNTING & TAX SERVICES INC.  
360 ADVANCED, INC. 
ALPINE PS CPAS 
ALDRICH CPAS AND ADVISORS LLP 
PROVIDUS CONSULTING, LLC 
UMC CPA'S PLLC 
LAKE WASHINGTON CPA, LLC 
BENNETT ACCOUNTING SERVICES, LLC  
 
Professional/Educational Organization - Recognition 
Requests:  During the 4th quarter 2016, the Board recognized 
MindEdge, Inc. as educational organization for purposes of 
obtaining a list of individual CPAs. 
 
Domestic or Foreign Education Credential Evaluation 
Services – Applications:  During the 4th quarter 2016, the 



Minutes, January 27, 2017, Regular Board Meeting 
 
 

 
Page 5 of 8 

 Board did not receive any requests for recognition of 
domestic or international education credential evaluation 
services. 
 
CPE Extension Requests: CPE Extension Requests were 
received between 11/01/2016 and 12/31/2016. 
 
A total of 32 requests were received: 
 

• 1 request was for hours 16 or under:  
o  1 denied 

 
•  31 requests were for hours 17 or over: 

o 20 approved  
o 11 denied 

 
State Ethics 
Compliance 
Committee 
 

Jim Ladd had nothing to report. 

Qualifications 
Committee 
 

Emily Rollins reported that military and Chartered Accountant 
education are possible upcoming topics for discussion. 
 

Performance 
Review and 
Succession 
Committee 
 

Emily Rollins had nothing to report, but asked the Executive 
Director to let her know if he had any input or needed 
anything related to performance review. 
 
 

Social Media 
Committee 
 

Favian Valencia presented the NASBA created video, “How 
to Qualify for the CPA Exam”, which will be added to the 
Board’s website.  
 
He also led the discussion on establishing a Board Facebook 
page. Board Member and staff’s primary concerns included 
public records issues, staff work load concerns, and set-up 
and maintenance costs. The Deputy Director will have the 
Chief Information Officer prepare a business plan, which 
addresses these concerns, for the April Board meeting.          
 

WSCPA Education 
Fund Committee  
 

Tom Neill presented the report, Accounting of Receipts and 
Disbursements, Washington State Certified Public Accounting 
Scholarship Program for the Year Ending December 31, 
2016. 



Minutes, January 27, 2017, Regular Board Meeting 
 
 

 
Page 6 of 8 

 

Executive Director’s 
Report  
 

Legislation 
 
The Executive Director reported that he is following current 
legislation that may affect the Board. He attended a hearing 
for Senate Bill 5057, which involves hearings and the Office 
of Adjudicative Proceedings. 
 
Establishing Priorities for Statute and Rule Changes for FY 
18 
 
The Executive Director reported that he will circulate a 
strategic plan for possible upcoming revisions.  
 
Operational and IT Priorities – Management by Objective 
 
The Deputy Director reported that all administrative policies 
are currently being updated. She also provided the Board 
with the credentialed population numbers and the renewal 
period progress. 
 
She reported that the Chief Information Officer was hired to 
ensure that our IT systems meet the business needs, while 
following state and business requirements. The current 
projects include increasing functionality to the customer 
application and website with a commitment to increase our 
Americans with Disability Act (ADA) compliance.  
 
Budget Status 
 
The Executive Director presented the Allotment 
Expenditure/Revenue BTD Flexible Report, the Certified 
Public Accountant’s Account Fund Balance, and the CPA 
Scholarship Transfer Account Fund Balance for transactions 
run through December 30, 2016. 
 
Enforcement Focus on Case Resolution – Fish or Cut Bait 
 
The Executive Director reported that the case load is 
manageable with cases being resolved as quickly as 
possible. 
 



Minutes, January 27, 2017, Regular Board Meeting 
 
 

 
Page 7 of 8 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Conversations with the Washington Association of 
Accountants and Tax Preparers (WAATP) 
 
The Executive Director reported that he has been in 
discussion with members of WAATP on various topics, and 
he will be presenting at their annual meeting. 
 
WBOA Participation in Results Washington 
 
The Executive Director stated that he is working with Tom 
Neill and Rajib Doogar on creating a report.  
 

Enforcement  
Report 

The Executive Director presented the following reports to the 
Board: 
 

• Enforcement Annual Report for January 1, 2016 
through December 31, 2016 

• Quarter Report for October 1, 2016 through December 
31, 2016 

 
Legal Counsel’s 
Report 

No legal counsel report was given. 
 
   

Executive and/or 
Closed Sessions 
with Legal Counsel 
 

No executive or closed sessions with legal counsel held. 
 

Public Input 
 
 

The Board received input from members of the WSCPA and 
WAATP throughout the meeting. 

Adjournment The Chair adjourned the meeting at 1:48 p.m. 



Minutes, January 27, 2017, Regular Board Meeting 
 
 

 
Page 8 of 8 

 
 
   
 Secretary 
 
_____________________________ 
Chair 
 
_____________________________ 
Vice-Chair 
 
_____________________________ 
Member 
 
_____________________________ 
Member 
 
_____________________________ 
Member 
 
_____________________________ 
Member 
 
_____________________________ 
Member 
 
_____________________________ 
Member 











http://www.nasba.org/international/mra
















































WAC 4-30-050 and WAC 4-30-051 Board Discussion 
April 2017 
Page 1 
 
 
 
 
1. Defining authorized persons.  

Rule 050 defines “client” as a current or former client, but does not specify what natural 
person can authorize consent, such as a business owner, partner, corporate officer, or 
LLC member or manager, or trustee. Rule 051 contains no definition of “client”. And, 
what natural person is authorized could vary widely depending on the type of entity.  

AICPA ET Section 1.400.200 notes that a member who has provided records to an 
individual designated or held out as the client’s representative, such as the general 
partner, majority shareholder, or spouse, is not obligated to provide such records to other 
individuals associated with the client. 

Does the Board want to further define “client” to only include authorized persons on the 
behalf of the client? And, how specifically does the Board want to define “authorized 
persons”? 

2. Affirmative versus implied consent for transfer of records.  

AICPA ET Section 1.400.205 provides that for a sale or transfer of a practice, the buyer 
and seller must notify clients of transfers and records may be transferred after 90 days if 
no client confirmation. Board policy is that affirmative consent must be received. 

Adopting the AICPA’s implied consent would ease the transfer of records in the sale or 
transfer of a practice, and would be especially useful in the situations of the transfers of 
the practice of deceased licensees.  

Does the Board want to adopt the provisions of ET section 1.400.205 that allow implied 
consent for transfer of records in a sale or transfer of a practice? 

3. Disclosing information to third party service providers (part one).  

AICPA ET Section 1.700.050 on confidentiality provides that when disclosing 
information to third party service providers, a CPA must either determine that the third-
party service provider has adequate safeguards, or alternatively obtain client consent. 
Board policy is the affirmative consent must be received.  

AICPA ET Section 1.150.040 on integrity and objectivity notes a member should 
disclose the use of a third-party service provider to a client. However, a member is not 
required to inform the client when he or she uses a third-party service provider to provide 



WAC 4-30-050 and WAC 4-30-051 Board Discussion 
April 2017 
Page 2 
 
 
 
 
administrative support services to the member (for example, record storage, software 
application hosting, or authorized e-file tax transmittal services). 

Does the Board want to clarify Rule 050 to state that using third party service providers 
for administrative support services such as record storage, software application hosting, 
or authorized e-file tax transmittal services, requires affirmative client consent? 

4. Disclosing information to third party service providers (part two).  

AICPA ET Section 1.700.050 on confidentiality provides that when disclosing 
information to third party service providers, a CPA must either determine that the third-
party service provider has adequate safeguards, or alternatively obtain client consent. 
Board policy is the affirmative consent must be received.  

AICPA ET Section 1.300.010 on competence notes that that a normal part of 
providing professional services involves performing additional research or consulting 
with others to gain sufficient competence. 

AICPA ET Section 1.700.090 on confidentially notes that disclosure of a client’s name 
does not violate the confidential client information rule, if the disclosure of the name 
itself does not constitute the release of confidential client information. For example, if 
a member’s practice is limited to bankruptcy matters, disclosure of the client’s name 
could suggest that the client may be experiencing financial difficulties, which may 
be confidential client information.  

Licensees will often consult with, but not engage, other licensees on specific client 
matters as part of due professional care and efforts to gain sufficient competence. Often 
the name of the client is not disclosed to the third party.  

Does the Board consider this an issue that needs to be addressed in Rule 050? Does it 
matter whether the name of the client is disclosed to the third party? 

5. Withholding records for outstanding fees.   

AICPA ET Section 1.400.200 allows that member prepared records and member 
prepared work products may be withheld for outstanding fees. 

Rule 051 provides that completed records prepared by the licensee may generally not be 
withheld for outstanding fees. A licensee may charge a reasonable fee for the time and 
expense incurred to retrieve and copy the records.   



WAC 4-30-050 and WAC 4-30-051 Board Discussion 
April 2017 
Page 3 
 
 
 
 
The nationwide trend has shifted away from the Board’s position that completed records 
prepared by the licensee must not be withheld for outstanding fees and now the Board’s 
position is a minority position among the states.  

Does the Board want to change its position that completed records prepared by the 
licensee may generally not be withheld for outstanding fees?  

6. Electronic records. 

Rule 051 notes persons developing and maintaining such records, or schedules should 
make a reasonable effort to provide the required information and data to the client in a 
format useable by the client to avoid the cost to the client of duplicate reentry of 
individual transaction or other information into the client's or successor custodian's 
recordkeeping system. 

Rule 051 also notes that a licensee, CPA-Inactive certificate holder, and/or nonlicensee 
firm owner is not required to convert records that are not in electronic format to 
electronic format. However, if the client requests records in a specific format and the 
licensee, CPA-Inactive certificate holder, and/or nonlicensee firm owner was engaged to 
prepare the records in that format, the client's request should be honored. 

Recurring disputes occur over electronic records such as QuickBooks data files and tax 
depreciation schedules that are part of the electronic tax return data file. Despite the 
existing rule, often electronically kept records are provided to a successor licensee in a 
paper format.  

Does the Board want to strengthen the provisions of Rule 051 to clearly state that 
records that are maintained electronically must be provided electronically? 

   



WAC 4-30-050 and WAC 4-30-051 Board Discussion 
April 2017 
Page 4 
 
 
 
 
WAC 4-30-050 

What are the requirements concerning records and clients confidential 
information? 

(1) Client: The term "client" as used throughout WAC 4-30-050 and 4-30-
051 includes former and current clients. For purposes of this section, a client relationship 
has been formed when confidential information has been disclosed by a prospective client 
in an initial interview to obtain or provide professional services. 

(2) Sale or transfer of client records: No statement, record, schedule, working 
paper, or memorandum, including electronic records, may be sold, transferred, or 
bequeathed without the consent of the client or his or her personal representative or 
assignee, to anyone other than one or more surviving partners, shareholders, or new 
partners or new shareholders of the licensee, partnership, limited liability company, or 
corporation, or any combined or merged partnership, limited liability company, or 
corporation, or successor in interest. 

(3) Confidential client communication or information: Licensees, CPA-Inactive 
certificate holders, nonlicensee firm owners and employees of such persons must not 
without the specific consent of the client or the heirs, successors, or authorized 
representatives of the client disclose any confidential communication or information 
pertaining to the client obtained in the course of performing professional services. 

This rule also applies to confidential communications and information obtained in the 
course of professional tax compliance services unless state or federal tax laws or 
regulations require or permit use or disclosure of such information. 

Consents may include those requirements of Treasury Circular 230 and IRC Sec. 
7216 for purposes of this rule, provided the intended recipients are specifically and fully 
identified by full name, address, and other unique identifiers. 

(4) This rule does not: 

(a) Affect in any way the obligation of those persons to comply with a lawfully issued 
subpoena or summons; 

(b) Prohibit disclosures in the course of a quality review of a licensee's attest, 
compilation, or other reporting services governed by professional standards; 

http://apps.leg.wa.gov/WAC/default.aspx?cite=4-30-051
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/WAC/default.aspx?cite=4-30-051


WAC 4-30-050 and WAC 4-30-051 Board Discussion 
April 2017 
Page 5 
 
 
 
 

(c) Preclude those persons from responding to any inquiry made by the board or any 
investigative or disciplinary body established by local, state, or federal law or recognized 
by the board as a professional association; or 

(d) Preclude a review of client information in conjunction with a prospective 
purchase, sale, or merger of all or part of the professional practice of public accounting of 
any such persons. 

 

  



WAC 4-30-050 and WAC 4-30-051 Board Discussion 
April 2017 
Page 6 
 
 
 
 
WAC 4-30-051 

What are the requirements concerning client records, including response to requests 
by clients and former clients for records? 

(1) The following terms are defined below solely for use with this section: 

(a) Client provided records are accounting or other records belonging to the client 
that were provided to the licensee, CPA-Inactive certificate holder, and/or nonlicensee 
firm owner and employees of such persons by or on behalf of the client. 

(b) Client records prepared by the licensee, CPA-Inactive certificate holder, 
and/or nonlicensee firm owner are accounting or other records (for example, tax 
returns, general ledgers, subsidiary journals, and supporting schedules such as detailed 
employee payroll records and depreciation schedules) that the licensee, CPA-Inactive 
certificate holder, and/or nonlicensee firm owner and employees of such persons was 
engaged to prepare for the client. 

(c) Supporting records are information not reflected in the client's books and records 
that are otherwise not available to the client with the result that the client's financial 
information is incomplete. For example, supporting records include adjusting, closing, 
combining or consolidating journal entries (including computations supporting such 
entries), that are produced by the licensee, CPA-Inactive certificate holder, and/or 
nonlicensee firm owner and employees of such persons during an engagement. 

(d) Licensee, CPA-Inactive certificate holder, and/or nonlicensee firm owner 
working papers include, but are not limited to, audit programs, analytical review 
schedules, statistical sampling results, analyses, and schedules prepared by the client at 
the request of the licensee, CPA-Inactive certificate holder, and/or nonlicensee firm 
owner and employees of such persons. 

(2) When a client or former client (client) makes a request for client-provided records, 
client records prepared by the licensee, CPA-Inactive certificate holder, and/or 
nonlicensee firm owner, or supporting records that are in the custody or control of the 
licensee, CPA-Inactive certificate holder, and/or nonlicensee firm owner that have not 
previously been provided to the client, the licensee, CPA-Inactive certificate holder, 
and/or nonlicensee firm owner should respond to the client's request as follows: 

(a) Client provided records in the licensee, CPA-Inactive certificate holder, and/or 
nonlicensee firm owner custody or control must be returned to the client. 



WAC 4-30-050 and WAC 4-30-051 Board Discussion 
April 2017 
Page 7 
 
 
 
 

(b) Client records prepared by the licensee, CPA-Inactive certificate holder, and/or 
nonlicensee firm owner must be provided to the client, except that client records prepared 
by the licensee, CPA-Inactive certificate holder, and/or nonlicensee firm owner may be 
withheld if the preparation of such records is not complete. 

(c) Supporting records relating to a completed and issued work product must be 
provided to the client. 

(d) Persons subject to this subsection developing and maintaining such records, or 
schedules should make a reasonable effort to provide the required information and data to 
the client in a format useable by the client to avoid the cost to the client of duplicate 
reentry of individual transaction or other information into the client's or successor 
custodian's recordkeeping system. 

(3) The licensee, CPA-Inactive certificate holder, and/or nonlicensee firm owner is 
not required to convert records that are not in electronic format to electronic format. 
However, if the client requests records in a specific format and the licensee, CPA-
Inactive certificate holder, and/or nonlicensee firm owner was engaged to prepare the 
records in that format, the client's request should be honored. 

(4) Licensees, CPA-Inactive certificate holders, nonlicensee firm owners, and/or 
employees of such persons must not refuse to return or provide records indicated in 
subsection (1)(a), (b), and (c) of this section including electronic documents, pending 
client payment of outstanding fees. 

(5) Once the licensee, CPA-Inactive certificate holder, and/or nonlicensee firm owner 
and employees of such persons has complied with the requirements in subsection (2) of 
this section, he or she is under no ethical obligation to comply with any subsequent 
requests to again provide such records or copies of such records. However, if subsequent 
to complying with a request, a client experiences a loss of records due to a natural 
disaster or an act of war, the licensee, CPA-Inactive certificate holder, and/or nonlicensee 
firm owner should comply with an additional request to provide such records. 

(6) Licensee, CPA-Inactive certificate holder, and/or nonlicensee firm owner working 
papers are the licensee, CPA-Inactive certificate holder, and/or nonlicensee firm owner 
property and need not be provided to the client under provisions of this section; however, 
such requirements may be imposed by state and federal statutes and regulations, and 
contractual agreements. 



WAC 4-30-050 and WAC 4-30-051 Board Discussion 
April 2017 
Page 8 
 
 
 
 

(7) In connection with any request for client-provided records, client records prepared 
by the licensee, CPA-Inactive certificate holder, and/or nonlicensee firm owner and 
employees of such persons, or supporting records, the licensee, CPA-Inactive certificate 
holder, and/or nonlicensee firm owner may: 

(a) Charge the client a reasonable fee for the time and expense incurred to retrieve and 
copy such records and require that such fee be paid prior to the time such records are 
provided to the client; 

(b) Provide the requested records in any format usable by the client; 

(c) Make and retain copies of any records returned or provided to the client. 

(8) Where a licensee, CPA-Inactive certificate holder, and/or nonlicensee firm owner 
is required to return or provide records to the client, the licensee, CPA-Inactive certificate 
holder, and/or nonlicensee firm owner should comply with the client's request as soon as 
practicable but, absent extenuating circumstances, no later than forty-five days after the 
request is made. The fact that the statutes of the state in which the licensee, CPA-Inactive 
certificate holder, and/or nonlicensee firm owner practices grants the licensee, CPA-
Inactive certificate holder, and/or nonlicensee firm owner a lien on certain records in his 
or her custody or control does not relieve the licensee, CPA-Inactive certificate holder, 
and/or nonlicensee firm owner of his or her obligation to comply with this section. 

(9) A licensee, CPA-Inactive certificate holder, and/or nonlicensee firm owner is 
under no obligation to retain records for periods that exceed applicable professional 
standards, state and federal statutes and regulations, and contractual agreements relating 
to the service(s) performed. 

(10) Audit and review record retention requirements: For a period of seven years after 
a licensee concludes an audit or review such persons must retain the following records 
and documents, including electronic records unless hard copies of such exist: 

(a) Records forming the basis of the audit or review; 

(b) Records documenting audit or review procedures applied; 

(c) Records documenting evidence obtained including financial data, analyses, 
conclusions, and opinions related to the audit or review engagement; and 

(d) Records documenting conclusions reached by the licensee in the audit or review 
engagement.  



WAC 4-30-050 and WAC 4-30-051 Board Discussion 
April 2017 
Page 9 
 
 
 
 
ET Section 1.700.001    Confidential Client Information Rule 

.01         A member in public practice shall not disclose any confidential client 
information without the specific consent of the client. 

.02         This rule shall not be construed (1) to relieve a member of his or her professional 
obligations of the “Compliance With Standards Rule” [1.310.001] or the “Accounting 
Principles Rule” [1.320.001], (2) to affect in any way the member’s obligation to comply 
with a validly issued and enforceable subpoena or summons, or to prohibit 
a member’s compliance with applicable laws and government regulations, (3) to prohibit 
review of a member’s professional practice under AICPA or state CPA society or Board 
of Accountancy authorization, or (4) to preclude a member from initiating a complaint 
with, or responding to any inquiry made by, the professional ethics division or trial board 
of the Institute or a duly constituted investigative or disciplinary body of a state CPA 
society or Board of Accountancy. Members of any of the bodies identified in (4) above 
and members involved with professional practice reviews identified in (3) above shall not 
use to their own advantage or disclose any member’s confidential client information that 
comes to their attention in carrying out those activities. This prohibition shall not 
restrict members’ exchange of information in connection with the investigative or 
disciplinary proceedings described in (4) above or the professional practice reviews 
described in (3) above. [Prior reference: paragraph .01 of ET section 301] 

 

  

http://pub.aicpa.org/codeofconduct/resourceseamlesslogin.aspx?prod=ethics&tdoc=et-cod&tptr=et-cod1.310.001
http://pub.aicpa.org/codeofconduct/resourceseamlesslogin.aspx?prod=ethics&tdoc=et-cod&tptr=et-cod1.320.001
http://pub.aicpa.org/codeofconduct/resourceseamlesslogin.aspx?prod=ethics&tdoc=et-cod&tptr=et-cod1.320.001


WAC 4-30-050 and WAC 4-30-051 Board Discussion 
April 2017 
Page 10 
 
 
 
 
ET Section 1.400.200    Records Requests 

Terminology 

.01         The following terms are defined here solely for use with this interpretation: 

a.    A client includes current and former clients. 

b.    A member means the member or the member’s firm. 

c.    Client-provided records are accounting or other records, including hardcopy and 
electronic reproductions of such records, belonging to the client that were provided to the 
member by, or on behalf of, the client. 

d.    Member-prepared records are accounting or other records that the member was not 
specifically engaged to prepare and that are not in the client’s books and records or are 
otherwise not available to the client, thus rendering the client’s financial information 
incomplete. Examples include adjusting, closing, combining, or consolidating journal 
entries (including computations supporting such entries) and supporting schedules and 
documents that the member proposed or prepared as part of an engagement (for example, 
an audit). 

e.    Member’s work products are deliverables set forth in the terms of the engagement, 
such as tax returns. 

f.    Working papers are all other items prepared solely for purposes of the engagement 
and include items prepared by the 

i.    member, such as audit programs, analytical review schedules, and statistical sampling 
results and analyses. 

ii.    client at the request of the member and reflecting testing or other work done by the 
member. 

Interpretation 

 

.02         Members must comply with the rules and regulations of authoritative regulatory 
bodies, such as the member’s state board(s) of accountancy, when the member performs 
services for a client and is subject to the rules and regulations of such regulatory body. 
For example, a member’s state board(s) of accountancy may not permit a member to 



WAC 4-30-050 and WAC 4-30-051 Board Discussion 
April 2017 
Page 11 
 
 
 
 
withhold certain records, even though fees are due to the member for the work 
performed. Failure to comply with the more restrictive provisions of the applicable 
regulatory body’s rules and regulations concerning the return of certain records would 
constitute a violation of this interpretation. 

.03         The member should return client-provided records in the member’s custody or 
control to the client at the client’s request. 

.04         Unless a member and the client have agreed to the contrary, when a client makes 
a request for member-prepared records or a member’s work products that are in the 
member’s custody or control and that have not previously been provided to the client, the 
member should respond to the client’s request as follows: 

a.    The member should provide member-prepared records relating to a completed and 
issued work product to the client, except that such records may be withheld if fees are 
due to the member for that specific work product. 

b.    Member’s work products should be provided to the client, except that such work 
products may be withheld 

i.    if fees are due to the member for the specific work product; 

ii.    if the work product is incomplete; 

iii.    if for purposes of complying with professional standards (for example, withholding 
an audit report due to outstanding audit issues); or 

iv.    if threatened or outstanding litigation exists concerning the engagement or 
member’s work. 

.05         Once a member has complied with these requirements, he or she is under no 
ethical obligation to 

a.    comply with any subsequent requests to again provide records or copies of records 
described in paragraphs .03–.04. However, if subsequent to complying with a request, a 
client experiences a loss of records due to a natural disaster or an act of war, the member 
should comply with an additional request to provide such records. 

b.    retain records for periods that exceed applicable professional standards, state and 
federal statutes and regulations, and contractual agreements relating to the service 
performed. [Prior reference: paragraph .02 of ET section 501] 



WAC 4-30-050 and WAC 4-30-051 Board Discussion 
April 2017 
Page 12 
 
 
 
 
.06         A member who has provided records to an individual designated or held out as 
the client’s representative, such as the general partner, majority shareholder, or spouse, is 
not obligated to provide such records to other individuals associated with the client. 
[Prior reference: paragraphs .377–.378 of ET section 591] 

.07         Working papers are the member’s property, and the member is not required to 
provide such information to the client. However, state and federal statutes and regulations 
and contractual agreements may impose additional requirements on the member. 

.08         In fulfilling a request for client-provided records, member-prepared records, or a 
member’s work products, the member may 

a.    charge the client a reasonable fee for the time and expense incurred to retrieve and 
copy such records and require that the client pay the fee before the member provides the 
records to the client. 

b.    provide the requested records in any format usable by the client. However, the 
member is not required to convert records that are not in electronic format to electronic 
format. If the client requests records in a specific format and the records are available in 
such format within the member’s custody and control, the client’s request should be 
honored. In addition, the member is not required to provide the client with formulas, 
unless the formulas support the client’s underlying accounting or other records or the 
member was engaged to provide such formulas as part of a completed work product. 

c.    make and retain copies of any records that the member returned or provided to the 
client. 

.09         A member who is required to return or provide records to the client should 
comply with the client’s request as soon as practicable but, absent extenuating 
circumstances, no later than 45 days after the request is made. 

.10         The fact that the statutes of the state in which the member practices grant the 
member a lien on certain records in his or her custody or control does not relieve the 
member of his or her obligation to comply with this interpretation. [Prior reference: 
paragraph .02 of ET section 501] 

.11         A member would be considered in violation of the “Acts Discreditable Rule” 
[1.400.001] if the member does not comply with the requirements of this interpretation. 

  



WAC 4-30-050 and WAC 4-30-051 Board Discussion 
April 2017 
Page 13 
 
 
 
 
 

ET Section 1.700.040    Disclosing Information to a Third-Party Service Provider 

.01         When a member uses a third-party service provider to assist the member in 
providing professional services, threats to compliance with the “Confidential Client 
Information Rule” [1.700.001] may exist. 

.02          Clients may not expect the member to use a third-party service provider to assist 
the member in providing the professional services. Therefore, before disclosing 
confidential client information to a third-party service provider, the member should do 
one of the following: 

a.    Enter into a contractual agreement with the third-party service provider to maintain 
the confidentiality of the information and provide reasonable assurance that the third-
party service provider has appropriate procedures in place to prevent the unauthorized 
release of confidential information to others. The nature and extent of procedures 
necessary to obtain reasonable assurance depends on the facts and circumstances, 
including the extent of publicly available information on the third-party service 
provider’s controls and procedures to safeguard confidential client information. 

b.    Obtain specific consent from the client before disclosing confidential client 
information to the third-party service provider. 

.03         Refer to the “Use of a Third-Party Service Provider” interpretation [1.150.040] 
of the “Integrity and Objectivity Rule” [1.100.001] and the “Use of a Third-Party Service 
Provider” interpretation [1.300.040] of the “General Standards Rule” [1.300.001] for 
additional guidance. [Prior reference: paragraphs .001–.002 of ET section 391] 

  



WAC 4-30-050 and WAC 4-30-051 Board Discussion 
April 2017 
Page 14 
 
 
 
 
 

ET Section 1.400.205    Transfer of Files and Return of Client Records in Sale, 
Transfer, Discontinuance or Acquisition of a Practice 

Sale or Transfer of Member’s Practice 

.01         A member or member’s firm (member) that sells or transfers all or part of the 
member’s practice to another person, firm, or entity (successor firm) and will no longer 
retain any ownership in the practice should do all of the following: 

a.    Submit a written request to each client subject to the sale or transfer, requesting the 
client’s consent to transfer its files to the successor firm and, notify the client that its 
consent may be presumed if it does not respond to the member’s request within a period 
of not less than 90 days, unless prohibited by law, including but not limited to the rules 
and regulations of the applicable state boards of accountancy. The member should not 
transfer any client files to the successor firm until either the client’s consent is obtained 
or the 90 days has lapsed, whichever is shorter. The member is encouraged to retain 
evidence of consent, whether obtained from the client or presumed after 90 days. 

b.    With respect to files not subject to the sale or transfer, make arrangements to return 
any client records that the member is required to provide to the client as set forth in the 
“Records Request” interpretation [1.400.200] unless the member and client agree to some 
other arrangement. 

.02         In cases in which the member is unable to contact the client, client files and 
records not transferred should be retained in a confidential manner and in accordance 
with the firm’s record retention policy or as required by applicable legal or regulatory 
requirements, whichever is longer. When practicing before the IRS or other taxing 
authorities or regulatory bodies, members should ensure compliance with any 
requirements that are more restrictive. 

Discontinuation of Member’s Practice 

.03         A member who discontinues his or her practice but does not sell or transfer the 
practice to a successor firm, should do all of the following: 

a.    Notify each client in writing of the discontinuation of the practice. The member is 
encouraged to retain evidence of notification made to clients. The member is not required 
to provide notification to former clients of the firm. 



WAC 4-30-050 and WAC 4-30-051 Board Discussion 
April 2017 
Page 15 
 
 
 
 
b.    Make arrangements to return any client records that the member is required to 
provide to the client as set forth in the “Records Request” interpretation [1.400.200] 
unless the member and client agree to some other arrangement. 

.04         In cases in which the member is unable to contact the client, client files should 
be retained in a confidential manner and in accordance with the firm’s record retention 
policy or as required by applicable legal or regulatory requirements, whichever is longer. 
When practicing before the IRS or other taxing authorities or regulatory bodies, members 
should ensure compliance with any requirements that are more restrictive. 

Acquisition of Practice by a Member 

.05         A member who acquires all or part of a practice from another person, firm, or 
entity (predecessor firm) should be satisfied that all clients of the predecessor firm 
subject to the acquisition have, as required in paragraph .01, consented to the member’s 
continuation of professional services and retention of any client files or records the 
successor firm retains 

.06         A member will be considered in violation of the “Acts Discreditable Rule” 
[1.400.001] if the member does not comply with any of the requirements of this 
interpretation. 

Effective Date 

.07         This interpretation is effective June 30, 2017. Early implementation is allowed. 



PEER REVIEW OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE 
Washington BOARD OF ACCOUNTANCY 

 

February 27, 2017 

 
Thomas Neill,  
Washington State Board of Accountancy 
 
 
RE:   Annual Report on Oversight of AICPA Peer Review Program 
 Administered by the Washington State Society of CPAs. 
 For the period from January 1, 2016, through December 31, 2016.  
 
Dear Mr. Neill: 
 
We have completed our monitoring and evaluation of the AICPA Peer Review Program 
administered by the Washington State Society of CPAs (WSCPA)] for the period from January 1, 
2016 through December 31, 2016.  Our oversight work was performed in accordance with the 
Operating Agreement between the Washington Board of Accountancy (Board) and the 
Washington Society of CPAs (WSCPA) for State Oversight of the AICPA Peer Review Program. 
 
The purpose of the Peer Review Oversight Committee (PROC) is to provide reasonable 
assurance that: 

o The participating entities are complying with the administrative procedures 
acceptable to the Board. 

o Reviews are being conducted in accordance with RCW 18.04.055 and WAC 4-30-
130. 

o Results of peer reviews are evaluated in a consistent manner. 
o Compliance assurance information is provided to reviewed firms and reviewers 

by administering entities in an accurate and timely manner.   
o The Board is advised on any other matters related to the compliance assurance 

program.  
 
The WSCPA administration of the peer review program is performed by a Peer Review 
Committee and two Report Acceptance Bodies (RABs).  They are assisted by three technical 
reviewers engaged by the WSCPA who receive peer review reports from firms upon completion 
of their reviews.  These reports and certain review documents provided by the peer reviewer 
are reviewed by the technical reviewers who summarize the information and obtain 
explanations from peer reviewers and require revisions as considered necessary.  The RABs 
receive this information for review, acceptance, modification, and determination of any follow 
up and/or monitoring actions to be performed relative to the peer review. 
 



We observed two of the RAB meetings that occurred during the period above. The System RAB, 
which reviews firms that perform audits and other attest engagements, met seven times and 
the Engagement RAB, which reviews firms that do not perform audit or attestation 
engagements, met seven times.  Some of these meetings were tele-conferences.  We received 
the information that the RABs had available to make their conclusions prior to the meetings 
and observed, without comment, the proceedings.  One PROC member observed each meeting.  
After each of the meetings, the PROC member completed a standardized checklist and 
summarized any observations. 
 
During the period covered by this report, the System RAB reviewed 59 reports and accepted 51 
(86%) without follow-up or monitoring actions required.  The remaining 6 (10%) firms were 
subjected to further monitoring by the RAB.  Two other firms’ reviews were deferred (accepted 
in 2017) to obtain additional information.  Of the 57 accepted reports, 51 (89%) were rated 
“pass” by the peer reviewer, 2 (4%) were rated as “pass with deficiency (ies)”and 4(7%) were 
rated “fail”.   
 
The Engagement RAB reviewed 153 reports and accepted 132 (86%) without follow-up or 
monitoring actions.  The remaining 21 (14%) firms were subjected to further monitoring by the 
RAB.  Of the 153 accepted reports, 131 (86%) received a rating of “pass”, 12 (8%) received a 
rating of “pass with deficiency(ies) and 10 (6%) received a rating of “fail”.   
 
Schedule I is a summary of matters we observed during the meetings.      
 
Based upon the results of the procedures we performed, it is our conclusion that peer reviews 
administered by WSCPA for the period from January 1, 2016 through December 31, 2016 were 
conducted and reported on in accordance with the standards of the AICPA Peer Review 
Program and that the AICPA program can be relied upon as a basis for excluding licensee firms 
from undergoing Board initiated reviews. 
 
Sincerely,  
PEER REVIEW OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE 
 
__________________________ 
Karen R. Saunders, Chairman 
 
  



 
      

SCHEDULE I 
 

SUMMARY OF OBSERVATIONS OF PEER REVIEW OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE 
For the period from January 1, 2016 through December 31, 2016 

 
During our observations of the WSCPA Peer Review Committee (PRC) and its two Report 
Acceptance Bodies (RABs), the PROC members observed the following. 
 

1. The PRC and RABs had good discussions relative to the more difficult reports (which 
contained matters for further consideration (MFCs) and findings for further 
consideration (FFCs)).    

2. The members of the RABs had good discussions about the ratings being given on the 
reviews and did not always agree with the reviewer between the “pass”, “pass with 
deficiencies” and “fail” conclusions reached.  Their recommended follow-up actions, 
however, generally tried to identify what would improve the quality of the firm’s attest 
work the most.     

3. The WSCPA is continuing its efforts to find additional RAB members. The RABs take the 
time to help new members to understand both the peer review process and the 
acceptance procedures. 

4. The RAB structure was updated to identify reviewers who had expertise in the must pick 
engagements to create a virtual RAB, so to speak, to ensure the acceptance process 
adequately addressed the needs of those firms. 

  

  

 





 
 

Request Review Committee Report 
April 2017 

 
 
Elizabeth Masnari, CPA, Chair 
 
During the first quarter 2017, the Executive Director and a Consulting Board Member 
from the Request Review Committee took the following action: 
 
Approved Firm Names: 
 
NICHOLAS KNAPTON SPOKANE, P.S. 
NICHOLAS KNAPTON SEATTLE, P.S 
IMPETUS ACCOUNTING 
MCCULLOCH ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION 
BELLTON CPA OFFICE, PLLC 
LAURIE PARRISH CPA, PLLC 
CPS FAMILY OFFICE SERVICES, PC 
PLAN SERVICES, INC. PC  
HAVE PENCIL, WILL TRAVEL 
 
Professional/Educational Organization – Recognition Requests – During the 1st 
quarter in 2017, the Board did not receive any requests for recognition of an educational 
organization for purposes of obtaining list requests. 
 
Domestic or International Education Credential Evaluation Services – Applications 
– During the 1st quarter in 2017, the Board did not receive any requests for recognition of 
domestic or international education credential evaluation services. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



High Level Business Plan for Social Media  
WA State Board of Accountancy 

April 2017 
 

M. Tuscher 
April 2017 
WA State Board of Accountancy 

Topic of thought - Impact on the Organization’s Mission:  What is the organizations mission; what 
impact will incorporating social media have on accomplishing our mission? 

Goals for the WA State Board of Accountancy 
• The Board’s goal:  Be an influencer with quality of content and avoid the white noise of click-bait. 
• The Board’s goal:  Build a community by being engaging and approachable with informative material.   
• The Board’s goal:  Continue to be a leader by providing the best customer service in the arena of Social 

Media.   

Public records issues: 

• Policy Development – Required Components:   
• Create an organizational policy about who can engage in social media on behalf of government 

(the Board) 
• Create an acceptable use policy for citizens or consumers 
• Create an internal use policy for employees and Board members 

• Government Responsibility - Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) & Public Records Requests (PRR) 
• Public Records retention and disclosure   
• Social Media is a public forum - User posted content is protected by freedom of speech 
• Legal considerations - Work with Attorney General   

Steps toward Implementation and Maintenance and Operations (M&O): 

• Create Policies 
• Create an entry in Facebook Pages for agency 
• Make Quality of Content the goal over Quantity 
• Pages managed by a communications subject matter expert (SME) 

• Connect and build a community with personalized content 
• Create content tied to organizational mission 
• Monitor and respond to posts 

• Consolidate and disseminate information in response to public records requests (PRR) 
• Manage applications associated with social media 
• Expand influence 

Costs and Staffing: 

• ArchiveSocial (to meet FOIA) based on volume of use – most popular plan, $4788.00 per year plus tax 
http://archivesocial.com/   Increase costs on increased volume. 

• One FTE - $60,000.00 per year / partial 
• Advertising – unknown at this time 

 

http://archivesocial.com/








Complaints Investigations Period Total

Ongoing at start of period 9 10 19
Received during period 9 9

Total 18 10 28
Complaints opened

as investigations (4) 4
Total 14 14 28

Complaints Dismissed
(Administrative) 0 0

Complaints Dismissed
 (investigated <= 180 days) (10) (10)

Complaints Dismissed
 (investigated > 180 days) 0 0

Total 4 14 18
Cases Dismissed
(Administrative) (1) (1)
Cases Dismissed

(investigated <= 180 days) (2) (2)
Cases Dismissed

(investigated > 180 days) 0 0
Total 4 11 15

Cases Closed
(Administrative) (4) (4)

Cases Closed
(investigated <= 180) (1) (1)

Cases Closed
(investigated > 180) 0 0

Total 4 6 10

Quarter Report (Jan 01, 2017 through Mar 31, 2017)

Enforcement Report


	Chair
	WAC 4-30-050 and WAC 4-30-051 Board Discussion April 2017.pdf
	1. Defining authorized persons.
	Rule 050 defines “client” as a current or former client, but does not specify what natural person can authorize consent, such as a business owner, partner, corporate officer, or LLC member or manager, or trustee. Rule 051 contains no definition of “cl...
	2. Affirmative versus implied consent for transfer of records.
	3. Disclosing information to third party service providers (part one).
	Does the Board want to clarify Rule 050 to state that using third party service providers for administrative support services such as record storage, software application hosting, or authorized e-file tax transmittal services, requires affirmative cli...
	4. Disclosing information to third party service providers (part two).
	Does the Board consider this an issue that needs to be addressed in Rule 050? Does it matter whether the name of the client is disclosed to the third party?
	5. Withholding records for outstanding fees.
	Does the Board want to change its position that completed records prepared by the licensee may generally not be withheld for outstanding fees?
	6. Electronic records.
	WAC 4-30-050
	What are the requirements concerning records and clients confidential information?
	WAC 4-30-051
	What are the requirements concerning client records, including response to requests by clients and former clients for records?


